
 
NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

11 June 2021 Our Ref Southern Rural Committee/24 June 2021 
 Contact. Committee Services 
 Direct Dial. (01462) 474655 
 Email. committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk 
 
 
To: Members of the Committee: Councillor David Barnard, Councillor John Bishop, Councillor 

George Davies, Councillor Faye S Frost, Councillor Ian Moody, Councillor Lisa Nash, 
Councillor Sam North, Councillor Claire Strong, Councillor Mandi Tandi and Councillor Terry 
Tyler 

 
 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN OF A  

 

MEETING OF THE SOUTHERN RURAL COMMITTEE 
 

to be held in the  
 

COUNCIL CHAMBER, DISTRICT COUNCIL OFFICES, 
GERNON ROAD, LETCHWORTH GARDEN CITY 

 
On 

 

THURSDAY, 24TH JUNE, 2021 AT 7.30 PM  

 
 
 

Yours sincerely, 
 
 
Jeanette Thompson 
Service Director – Legal and Community 
 

Public Document Pack

mailto:committee.services@north-herts.gov.uk


 

 
 

**MEMBERS PLEASE ENSURE THAT YOU DOWNLOAD ALL  
AGENDAS AND REPORTS VIA THE MOD.GOV APPLICATION 

ON YOUR TABLET BEFORE ATTENDING THE MEETING** 

 
 

Agenda 
Part l 

 
Item  Page 

 
1.   ELECTION OF A CHAIR FOR THE CIVIC YEAR 2021/22 

To elect a Chair of the Southern Rural Committee for the Civic Year 2021/22. 
 

   
2.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE    
   
3.   MINUTES - 4 MARCH 2021 

To take as read and approve as a true record the minutes of the meeting of 
the Committee held on the 4 March 2021.  

(Pages 5 
- 14) 

   
4.   ELECTION OF A VICE CHAIR FOR THE CIVIC YEAR 2021/22 

To elect a Vice-Chair pf the Southern Rural Committee for the Civic Year 
2021/22. 

 

   
5.   NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS 

Members should notify the Chair of other business which they wish to be 
discussed at the end of either Part I or Part II business set out in the agenda. 
They must state the circumstances which they consider justify the business 
being considered as a matter of urgency. 
 
The Chair will decide whether any item(s) raised will be considered. 

 

   
6.   CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS 

Members are reminded that any declarations of interest in respect of any 
business set out in the agenda, should be declared as either a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest or Declarable Interest and are required to notify the Chair 
of the nature of any interest declared at the commencement of the relevant 
item on the agenda.  Members declaring a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest 
must withdraw from the meeting for the duration of the item. Members 
declaring a Declarable Interest, wishing to exercise a ‘Councillor Speaking 
Right’, must declare this at the same time as the interest, move to the public 
area before speaking to the item and then must leave the room before the 
debate and vote. 

 

   
7.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

To receive petitions, comments and questions from the public. 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 
8.   GRANTS & COMMUNITY UPDATE 

REPORT OF THE POLICY AND COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT MANAGER 
 
To advise the Committee on the current expenditure and balances of the 
Committee Grant budgets, bring to the Committee’s attention details of recent 
requests received for Committee grant funding, made by community groups 
and local organisations, advise the Committee of the activities and schemes 
with which the Community Engagement officers have been involved in and 
bring to the Committee’s attention some important community-based 
activities that will take place during the next few months. 

(Pages 
15 - 24) 

   
9.   WARD MATTERS AND OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS - MEMBERS' 

REPORTS 
To receive any verbal reports from Members regarding Ward matters and 
Outside Organisations. 

 

   
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



NORTH HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL 
 

SOUTHERN RURAL COMMITTEE 
 

MEETING HELD AS A VIRTUAL MEETING  
ON THURSDAY, 4TH MARCH, 2021 AT 7.30 PM 

 

MINUTES 
 
Present:  Councillors: Claire Strong (Chair), David Barnard, John Bishop, 

George Davies and Ian Moody 
 
In Attendance: Claire Morgan (Community Engagement Team Leader) and William 

Edwards (Committee, Member and Scrutiny Officer), Louis Franklin 
(Customer Service Assistant) 

  

 
Also Present: At the commencement of the meeting approximately 9 members of the 

public, including registered speakers. 
  
 
 

34 WELCOME AND REMOTE/PARTLY REMOTE MEETINGS PROTOCOL SUMMARY  
 
Audio Recording – 3 seconds.  
 
The Chair welcomed everyone to this virtual meeting of the Southern Rural Committee that 
was being conducted with Members and Officers at various locations, communicating via 
audio/video and online and advised that there was the opportunity for the public and press to 
listen and view proceedings. 
 
The Committee, Member and Scrutiny Officer undertook a roll call and gave advice regarding 
the following: 
 

 Attendance; 

 Live Streaming; 

 Noise interference; 

 Rules of Debate; 

 Voting. 
 
The Chair, Councillor Claire Strong, started the meeting proper. 
 

35 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Audio recording – 3 minutes 10 seconds.  
 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Faye Frost, Lisa Nash and Sam North. 
 
Councillors Terry Tyler and Steve Deakin-Davies were absent.  
 

36 MINUTES - JANUARY 2020 -  DECEMBER 2020  
 
Audio Recording – 3 minutes 29 seconds.  
 
RESOLVED:  
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3



Thursday, 4th March, 2021  

(1) That the Minutes of the Meetings of the Committee held on 8 January 2020, 25 June 
2020, 29 October 2020, and 10 December 2020  be approved as a true record of the 
proceedings; 

 
(2) That the Committee, Member and Scrutiny Officer be authorised to apply the Chair’s 

digital signature to the minutes approved above.  
 

37 NOTIFICATION OF OTHER BUSINESS  
 
Audio Recording – 4 minutes 20 seconds.  
 
There was no other business notified. 
 

38 CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
Audio Recording - 4 minutes 35 seconds.  
 
(1) The Chair welcomed those present at the meeting, especially those who had attended to 

give a presentation and the parish council representatives;  
 
(2) The Chair advised that, in accordance with Council Policy, the meeting would be audio 

recorded; 
 
(3) The Chair drew attention to the item on the agenda front pages regarding Declarations 

of Interest and reminded Members that, in line with the Code of Conduct, any 
Declarations of Interest needed to be declared immediately prior to the item in question. 

 
(4) The Chair advised that if members of the public wished to ask questions of the 

Hertfordshire Constabulary representative that they should be of a general region-wide 
nature and that specific local issues were best directed to their local Police Constable or 
Police Community Support Officer.  

 
39 HERTFORDSHIRE CONSTABULARY  

 
Audio Recording – 6 minutes 21 seconds.  
 
Sergeant Guy Westwood delivered a presentation on behalf of Hertfordshire Constabulary 
including: 
 

 The Chief Inspector was now Jon Roche; 

 The Safer Neighbourhood Inspector was James Lant, and the Detective Inspector was 
Angie Griffiths; 

 The Hitchin Urban sergeant was Alan Clarke; 

 Sergeant Guy Westwood was the Hitchin Rural sergeant; 

 The rural area Police Constables were Johnie Streeter, Clare Wallace and Gary 
Pugsley; 

 The rural area Police Community Support Officers were Heather Burrows and Stuart 
Stone;  

 The team was going to be recruiting rural special constables in the future; 

 Crimes in the rural area were typically underreported; 

 26% of all households in North Herts were signed up to the neighbourhood watch 
scheme; 

 The Priority Setting Forum would open in a week to determine the policing priorities of 
the team; 

Page 6



Thursday, 4th March, 2021  

 The priorities were currently antisocial behaviour (including related drugs offences) in 
local parks, speeding in the St Paul’s Walden and Kimpton areas, as well as crop 
damage, poaching and other damage to rural infrastructure;   

 The crime statistics for the year 2020/21 compared to the same period 2019/20 were as 
follows:  

 
Crime Overall 
5693 crimes were reported in North Herts, down from 6987 crimes last year. 
There had been a 3% increase in crimes reported in the Southern Rural area, with 896 
reported up from 867.  
 
Residential burglary 
21 reported compared to 50 last year.  
COVID regulations meant more people were staying at home reducing opportunity for this kind 
of crime to take place.  
Residential burglary was a focus for the team. 
 
Burglary (business and community) 
25 reported compared to 32 last year.  
 
Theft from vehicle 
67 reported compared to 54 last year. 
This was a 24% increase. 
 
Personal robbery 
3 up from 2 last year. 
 
Offences against the person  
A wide ambit of offences included making it hard to determine reasons for incidents 
341 up from 336 last year  
 
Criminal damage 
Reporting had decreased contrary to expectations in view of lockdown boredom 
96 compared to 111 last year.  
 
Theft from Shop 
Figures were up significantly county-wide this year.  
Most of this increase was down to one location at the border of the team’s area targeted by 
groups moving in from outside the region.  
In the rural area there had been 79 reported incidents compared to 38 last year.  
 
Drugs Offences 
18 reported in the Rural area compared to 15 last year. 
 
Aggravated crimes  
4 reported up from 3 last year. 
 
Domestic Abuse 
Figures on these offences could not be broken down into urban/rural groups 
There had been 1081 reports compared to 1201 last year 
The team was still encouraging reports and had daily reviews from a dedicated Detective 
Sergeant to consider opportunities to encourage reports.  
 
Anti-social Behaviour 
Reports of anti-social behaviour including COVID-related conduct were up at 308 from 223 
last year.  
 

Page 7



Thursday, 4th March, 2021  

The following Members asked questions: 
 

 Councillor Claire Strong 

 Councillor Ian Moody 

 Councillor David Barnard 

 Councillor George Davies 

 Councillor John Bishop 
 
In response to questions Sergeant Guy Westwood advised: 
 

 The priority setting ECHO survey would be distributed online via the OWL system; 

 Fly-tipping was a matter for Council officers to enforce but the police would assist where 
evidence relating to criminal offences, in particular drugs offences, could be gathered; 

 Shift patterns meant it was difficult for PCs/PCSOs to cover every parish council 
meeting; 

 The rural area was geographically disparate and with only 3 PCs and 2 PCSOs the team 
was limited in what it could do; 

 Actionable intelligence leading to evidence of crimes was essential; 

 Antisocial behaviour in Great Ashby District Park had been a big issue over the summer 
but had largely been resolved after the gates and car park were shut earlier in the day; 
reports to the police had dropped off; 

 As lockdown restrictions ease the number of antisocial behaviour reports should 
decrease;  

 Non-urgent reports should be directed to the 111 service, unless an offence was actively 
underway in which case 999 should be called. 

 
The Chair thanked Sergeant Guy Westwood for his presentation.  
 

40 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - DOWN THE WOODS CIC  
 
Audio recording – 43 minutes 30 seconds.  
 
Ms. Caroline Langley – Down the Woods CIC thanked the Chair for the opportunity to address 
the Committee in support of their grant application and gave a verbal presentation including: 
 

 Down the Woods CIC provided outdoor education to the community and ran Within the 
Walls, a community garden project based in St. Paul’s Walden Bury; 

 They were seeking funding to provide forest school sessions for adults in the woods of 
the St Paul’s Walden Estate; 

 Outdoor education and forest school sessions developed self-esteem, transferable 
skills, mental health benefits, and preserved rural crafts; 

 The plan was to provide sessions for 6 participants in Hitch Wood which the group had 
been allowed to use for free by the landowner; 

 Sessions would focus on mindfulness, identifying nature, woodland and rural crafts, 
cooking over fires, and reintroducing participants back to social life. 

 
The following Members asked questions: 
 

 Councillor David Barnard 
 
In response to questions Ms. Caroline Langley advised: 
 

 The community garden run by the group was rented from the owners of the Hitch Wood 
area and access to a private section of the woods was being offered to them for free;  

 The forest school would propagate a no-trace ethos and prevent damage to the 
woodland; 

Page 8



Thursday, 4th March, 2021  

 Previous grants given to Down the Woods CIC had been spent on the community 
garden and a summer house shelter; 

 Members were welcome to visit the project when they were able.  
 
The Chair thanked Ms. Caroline Langley for her presentation.  
 
 

41 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - HOLWELL PARISH COUNCIL  
 
Audio Recording – 49 minutes 13 seconds.  
 
Ms Anne Warner – Holwell Parish Council thanked the Chair for the opportunity to address the 
Committee in support of their grant application and gave a verbal presentation including: 
 

 Holwell Parish Council was applying for a grant of £744 to purchase a new noticeboard 
costing a total of £1444 plus VAT as the present board has fallen in to disrepair; 

 The parish council had researched providers and selected a board made by Green 
Barns which uses hard wearing recycled materials; 

 The board would have windows, one with a lock for Parish Council notices and another 
left open for general community use; 

 The board would be situated on Holwell Road and the consensus of parishioners was 
that they would continue to use a community noticeboard once the old one was 
replaced; 

 The Parish Council was using £400 of its own funds and Councillor David Barnard had 
contributed £300 from the Hertfordshire County Council locality budget. 

 
The Chair thanked Ms Anne Warner for her presentation.  
 

42 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - OFFLEY & STOPSLEY CRICKET CLUB  
 
Audio Recording – 51 minutes 58 seconds.  
 
Mr Mark Tattersall – Offley & Stopsley Cricket Club thanked the Chair for the opportunity to 
address the Committee in support of their grant application and gave a verbal presentation 
including: 
 

 He was the Chair of Offley & Stopsley Cricket Club; 

 The club was a community team formed after a merger 23 years ago of two 
longstanding clubs; Stopsley had been playing for over 100 years and Offley Cricket 
Club was founded in 1923; 

 The application was for £1000 towards the refurbishment of the cricket pavilion including 
electrical work; 

 Youth development was at the heart of the club’s goals and through persistent 
canvassing and recruitment over 40% of the club were now based or had been based in 
the village of Offley; 

 The club was maintained by the work of volunteers; 

 The pavilion used to host a youth club until roof leaks resulted in a flood;  

 Funds were raised from club fees and events but had been stymied by COVID 
restrictions and the club did not feel able to charge its membership fee last year; 

 The cost of works was quoted at around £3500, £1500 of which the club was providing 
itself with a further £1000 given by Offley Parish Council; 

 The club was hoping to have a practice session on April 2nd and the Committee were 
welcome to come.  

 
The following Members asked questions or contributed to the discussion: 
 

Page 9



Thursday, 4th March, 2021  

 Councillor John Bishop 

 Councillor David Barnard 
 
In response to questions the Community Engagement Team Leader advised that the club had 
not received funding from NHDC since 2014 and this application met the grants policy criteria.  
 
The Chair thanked Mr Mark Tattersall for his presentation.  
 

43 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION - OFFLEY PARISH COUNCIL  
 
Audio Recording – 59 minutes 10 seconds.  
 
Mr David Sample – Offley Parish Council thanked the Chair for the opportunity to address the 
Committee in support of their grant application and gave a verbal presentation including: 
 

 Offley Parish Council was responsible for Offley, Cockernhoe, Mangrove Green and Tea 
Green; 

 The parish council had put together some funds and in 2018 purchased equipment to 
make a small play area on Elmtree Community Field after the land had been donated to 
the parish council by North Herts Homes; 

 The application was for £2000 to purchase additional play equipment; 

 The parish council was providing funding of £8500 from its funds and reserve;  

 The equipment installed in 2018 had been well received and the parish council had been 
looking to acquire more since then.  

 
The following Members asked questions: 
 

 Councillor David Barnard 

 Councillor Claire Strong 
 
In response to questions Mr David Sample advised: 
 

 The parish council had not applied to the airport committee fund as the application 
process was prohibitive; 

 The parish council hoped that because they were providing the bulk of the funding that 
Members would be minded to help them across the line; 

 Details of play equipment proposed had been circulated and included a model land 
rover and other playground installations.  

 
The Chair thanked Mr David Sample for his presentation.  
 

44 GRANTS & COMMUNITY UPDATE  
 
Audio Recording – 1 hour 3 minutes.  
 
The Community Engagement Team Leader presented the report entitled Grants & Community 
Update along with Appendix 2 and drew attention to the following: 
 

 This was the last meeting of the Southern Rural committee this financial and civic year;  

 The committee started the year with funding of £8700 and had awarded £3901 leaving 
£4799 available;  

 The grants requested this evening totalled £4634; 

 If Members were minded to approve all grants as outlined in the report there would be a 
carry over of £165 to next year’s budget.  

 

Page 10



Thursday, 4th March, 2021  

RESOLVED: That the actions taken by the Community Engagement team to promote greater 
community capacity and well-being for the Southern Rural area be endorsed. 
 
REASON FOR DECISION:  
 
(1) To ensure the Committee is kept informed of the work of the work of the Community 

Engagement team 
 

(2) To inform Members of the financial resources available to the Committee. It draws 
attention to the current budgetary situation by assisting in the effective financial 
management of the Area Committee’s budget. This ensures that all actions are 
performed in line with the Authority’s Financial Regulations, the Council’s Constitution, 
and the guidance of the existing Grants policy as agreed by Cabinet in January 2020.  

 
45 GRANT APPLICATION - DOWN THE WOODS CIC  

 
Audio Recording – 1 hour 7 minutes. 
 
It was: 
 
RESOLVED: That grant funding of £890 be awarded to Down the Woods CIC towards the 
cost of forest school sessions as outlined in paragraph 8.1.1 of the report entitled Grants & 
Community Update.  
 
REASON FOR DECISION: To improve services which are provided by local organisations 
and groups accessed by the community.  
 

46 GRANT APPLICATION - HOLWELL PARISH COUNCIL  
 
Audio Recording – 1 hour 8 minutes. 
 
It was:  
 
RESOLVED: That grant funding of £744 be awarded to Holwell Parish Council  towards the 
cost of a replacement noticeboard as outlined in paragraph 8.1.2 of the report entitled Grants 
& Community Update.  
 
REASON FOR DECISION: To improve services which are provided by local organisations 
and groups accessed by the community.  
 

47 GRANT APPLICATION - OFFLEY & STOPSLEY CRICKET CLUB  
 
Audio Recording – 1 hour 9 minutes.  
 
It was:  
 
RESOLVED: That grant funding of £1000 be awarded to Offley & Stopsley Cricket Club 
towards the cost of upgrading the electrics of their cricket pavilion as outlined in paragraph 
8.1.3 of the report entitled Grants & Community Update.  
 
REASON FOR DECISION: To improve services which are provided by local organisations 
and groups accessed by the community.  
 

48 GRANT APPLICATION - OFFLEY PARISH COUNCIL  
 
Audio Recording – 1 hour 10 minutes.  
 

Page 11



Thursday, 4th March, 2021  

It was:  
 
RESOLVED: That grant funding of £2000 be awarded to Offley Parish Council towards the 
cost of purchasing playground equipment as outlined in paragraph 8.1.4 of the report entitled 
Grants & Community Update.  
 
REASON FOR DECISION: To improve services which are provided by local organisations 
and groups accessed by the community.  
 

49 WARD MATTERS AND OUTSIDE ORGANISATIONS - MEMBERS' REPORTS  
 
Audio recording – 1 hour 11 minutes. 
 
Members gave updates on the following Ward Matters and Outside Organisations:  
 
Knebworth Town Twinning Association –  
Councillor Lisa Nash advised the Committee that Knebworth Town Twinning Association had 
Kim Wilde and Hal Fowler become co-presidents as Lord Cobbold retired; the AGM would be 
on Sunday and online events including a quiz and a wine tasting had been held.  
 
Knebworth Village Trust  
Councillor Lisa Nash advised Knebworth Village Trust had paid for several laptops for 
Knebworth Village School for children without facilities at home for online learning. 
 
Codicote Neighbourhood Plan 
Councillor Ian Moody advised there was a lot of concern in the village regarding the 
Neighbourhood Plan awaiting the results of inspection in the next few months, with one of the 
sites in the village up for consideration before the NHDC Emerging Local Plan was finalised. 
Work was ongoing in the village to make sure site was not considered before the Inspector’s 
report was released.  
 
Codifest  
Councillor Ian Moody advised that Codifest was coming back and that plans were underway. 
 
Codicote Village Day  
Councillor Ian Moody advised that Codicote Village Day had been delayed from July to 18 
September and there was excitement in the village about hosting the village day and the 
return to normality.  
 
Car Parking Charges Strategy 
Councillor Claire Strong advised the Committee of proposals to raise parking charges and 
noted that the only parking location in the Southern Rural area was in Knebworth and 
unfortunately both Knebworth ward members were absent. 
 
Knebworth Parish Council were subsidising the parking facilities in Knebworth up to £3500. 
 
Councillor Claire Strong noted that it was primarily rural residents that had to travel in to towns 
by car and paid parking charges and asked whether the Committee would appreciate a more 
formal consultation on proposals in foregoing years.  
 
The Committee felt informal consultation and discussion at other meetings or full Council was 
sufficient to comment on proposals.  
 
Planning enforcement in the Kimpton area 
Councillor John Bishop highlighted that work was being undertaken on a listed barn on the 
edge of the Kimpton which was still awaiting planning approval. Neighbours had alerted the 

Page 12



Thursday, 4th March, 2021  

Planning department and no action had yet been taken. Works undertaken were a potential 
enforcement issue.  
 
Councillor David Barnard advised that the Planning department were short staffed at present 
and under significant pressure.  
 

50 DISCUSSION TOPIC - SOUTHERN RURAL COUNCILLOR SURGERIES  
 
Audio Recording – 1 hour 18 minutes.  
 
The Chair led a discussion on the topic of Councillor Surgeries for the Southern Rural area, 
including contributions from Members and members of the public present at the meeting. 
 
Points raised included: 
 

 The Executive Member for Community Engagement had asked whether Members of the 
Committee would appreciate a new Councillor Surgery to discuss constituents’ issues in 
view of some comments made on social media and members of the public attending the 
Hitchin Councillors Surgery;  

 The Royston Councillor’s surgery is advertised as for ‘Royston and surrounding area,’;  

 Parish council meetings in the rural areas were well attended and had good public 
participation; 

 The geographic character and size of the Southern Rural area lends itself to a 
remote/virtual surgery and there could be public engagement benefits from continuing to 
conduct business remotely after restrictions are lifted; 

 Members were able to attend many more parish council meetings now that they were 
being conducted remotely and members of the public know that they can raise issues 
with their parish councils;  

 The councillors surgery in Hitchin could very easily become the Hitchin & Rural Surgery; 

 When it was held in person many residents from the surrounding villages who travelled 
in to Hitchin market would make contact with Councillors there;  

 An additional surgery would cost the Council in officer time and funding; 

 Issues facing constituents were often concerned with the use of the town and a joint 
surgery would encourage collaboration between town and rural Councillors.  

 
The Chair advised that she would write to the Executive Member for Community Engagement 
to advise them of the Committee’s view.  
 
The Chair invited members of the public attending from their respective parish councils to 
suggest topics for discussion by the Committee that might be of interest to them. The following 
topics were suggested: 
 

 Fly-tipping and police matters 

 Littering and environmental action days 
 
The Chair advised that discussions had been had about a town talk style forum before or after 
formal committee meetings and noted that this was the last meeting of the civic year.  
 
The Chair wished good luck to any Members standing for or involved in elections this year.  
 
 
 
The meeting closed at 9.10 pm 

 
Chair 

 

Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



SOUTHERN RURAL COMMITTEE 
24 JUNE 2021 

 

 
*PART 1 – PUBLIC DOCUMENT 
 

 
TITLE OF REPORT:  GRANTS & COMMUNITY UPDATE 
 
REPORT OF: THE POLICY & COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT MANAGER 
 
EXECUTIVE MEMBER: COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT 
 
COUNCIL PRIORITIES: BUILD THRIVING AND RESILIENT COMMUNITIES  
 

1 EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 

1.1 To advise the Committee on the current expenditure and balances of the Committee 
Grant budgets 
 

1.2 To bring to the Committee’s attention details of recent requests received for Committee 
grant funding, made by community groups and local organisations 
 

1.3 To advise the Committee of the activities and schemes with which the Community 
Engagement officers have been involved in. 
 

1.4 To bring to the Committee’s attention some important community-based activities that 
will take place during the next few months. 
 

2 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That the Committee be recommended to consider allocating funding from their 

discretionary community budget towards the projects below. 
 

2.2 £500 to Lilley Parish Council towards the cost of a new notice board for the village 
outlined in 8.1.1 
 

2.3 £1,500 to Kimpton Cricket Club towards the purchase of a wicket mower as outlined in 
8.1.2 
 

2.4 That the Committee be recommended to endorse the actions taken by the Community 
Engagement team to promote greater community capacity and well-being for Southern 
Rural. 

 

 
 
 
 

Page 15

Agenda Item 8



 
3. REASONS FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To ensure the Committee is kept informed of the work of the Community Engagement 

Team. 
 
3.2 This report is intended to inform Members of the financial resources available to the 

Committee. It draws attention to the current budgetary situation by assisting in the 
effective financial management of the Area Committee’s budget. This ensures that all 
actions are performed in line with the Authority’s Financial Regulations, the Council’s 
Constitution, and the guidance of the Grants Policy as agreed by Cabinet in January 
2020 

 
3.3 The awarding of financial assistance to voluntary organisations and the use of 

discretionary spending allows the Committee to further the aims of the Council Plan. 
 
4. ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED 
 
4.1. There are no alternative options being proposed other than those detailed within the text 

of this report. However, in the course of debate at committee, Members may wish to 
comment and offer additional views on any of the items included within this report. 
 

5. CONSULTATION WITH RELEVANT MEMBERS AND EXTERNAL ORGANISATIONS 
 
5.1 Consultation with Members has occurred in connection with the allocation of funds for    

Community Projects 
 
5.2 Consultation with the respective officers and external bodies/groups has taken place 

regarding funding proposals for Committee Funds. 
 
6. FORWARD PLAN 
 
6.1 This report does not contain a recommendation on a key Executive decision and has 

therefore not been referred to in the Forward Plan. 
 
7. BACKGROUND 
 
7.1 With reference to the Council’s Constitution, Section 9.3 Area Committees will include 

budgets for the purpose of providing grants and discretionary budgets that may be used 
within the area of the Committee for economic, social and environmental well-being.  

 
7.2 Members are asked to note the information detailed in Appendix 1. Southern Rural 

Committee Budget Spread sheet, which relates to the Committee budget balances for 
2021/22. The spreadsheet also details pre-allocated sums carried forward from the 
previous financial year, including balances and past expenditure. 

 
 
 
 

Page 16



 
8. RELEVANT CONSIDERATIONS-    Councillors are at liberty to consider any amount 

requested in a grant application as long as the committee has sufficient funds in the 
2021/2022 budget. 

 
8.1 Grant Applications 
 
8.1.1 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

The Lilley Parish Council are requesting grant funding to replace the outdated and 

damaged noticeboard used by many residents of the village to advertise their events as 

well as by Lilley Parish Council to display their meeting minutes and agendas.  

Under the current criteria agreed in January 2020 Parish Councils can make an 

application for grant funding to the relevant area committee if the activity is providing 

additionality to their usual responsibilities.  

 

8.1.2  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 The KCC committee are seeking funding to purchase equipment to underpin the 
investment that they made last year to make material improvement to the playing 
surface. 
Specifically, they would like to purchase a wicket mower. They realise a new machine is 
beyond their means but seek funding for a refurbished model. Reconditioned machines 
of the type they need (incorporating cassettes for cutting, scarifying, aerating etc) are 
available from several renowned providers at a significant discount to the cost of new 
ones. 

 
 
 

Applicant Lilley Parish Council 
Project New notice board 
Sum requested £500 
Total project cost £1,046 
Joint funding £546 from Parish Council funds 
NHDC Policy met YES 
Council Priorities Build thriving and resilient communities  

 

Applicant Kimpton Cricket Club Limited 
Project Purchase of a wicket mower 
Sum requested £1,500 
Total project cost £6,200 
Joint funding £1,200 donations from club members 

£3,500 national lottery community fund 
 

NHDC Policy met YES 
Council Priorities Build thriving and resilient communities  

 
 

Page 17



 
Following a report from Jerry Dovey, the Hertfordshire County Cricket Association 
ground coordinator, the club renovated the existing square and incorporated an artificial 
wicket. The virtues of a properly constructed and maintained playing surface are 
numerous, and include: 

 
 An improvement in the consistency of bounce on the square allows for both an 

improvement in the health and safety position for current players (particularly 
younger…and older…. ones) and will encourage participation by those who 
currently need to travel outside the parish to find clubs whose facilities match their 
aspirations 

 
 Whilst being equipped to deal with increased usage the renovated square will 

prove easier and more cost effective to maintain provided, they have the 
appropriate machinery 

 
 Cricket is aiming to be inclusive and working towards becoming more culturally 

diverse as a sport. The club expect that by increasing the breadth of participation 
will naturally enhance the viability of Kimpton cricket club and sustain their ability 
to remain custodians of a key village amenity. 

 
By improving the playing surface and adding extra facilities will have a significant impact 
on the club, the community and the playing opportunities for potential future cricketers in 
the village. The club will be able to offer a better experience to those playing and attract 
a wider range of participants. 
 
As noted above they will be able to deliver a wider range of cricketing experiences 
including league cricket, children’s coaching programmes, midweek nets, shorter forms 
of the game (T20 etc) and enable the local school to use facilities that were previously 
unavailable. 
 
Those making use of the facilities will benefit from the physical exercise and from the 
social aspects of playing a team sport.  
The club intends to use the benefits from this investment as a springboard towards future 
improvements including to the pavilion, to the breadth of playing teams (including a 
league team and a colts team) with a view to establishing the long term future of the club 
as a key part of the village for years to come. 
 
It is the ambition of the Kimpton Cricket Club to attract more young players to the club 
will also help us achieve longer-term sustainability for the club and for the benefits it 
brings to the wider community. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 18



 
The equipment they wish to purchase are as follows: 
 

Dennis FT610 Sports Mower £3,200 + vat 

Scarifying, aerating, slitting 
cassettes 

£2,000 + vat 

  

Total £6,200 inc vat 

 
 
8.2 Community Engagement and update on Previous Grants awarded  
 
8.2.1 Policy and Community Engagement Team 
 

The team have been continuing to engage and network with local community groups and 
initiatives. This involved: 

 

 Facilitating network meetings to ensure community groups are kept in touch. 
 

 Continuing to share and disseminate information on social media and to mailing 
lists, keeping in touch with the community, voluntary, statutory and non-statutory 
agencies. 

 

 Investigating the possibility of conducting face to face councillor surgeries again in 
line with Covid 19 health and safety concerns and current government guidelines. 

 

 Attending meetings of the North Herts Youth Strategy Group, North Herts Families 
First and the Family Support Service Partnership. 

 

 Liaising with a new Codicote Peace Memorial Hall regarding a potential Capital 
Funding application  

 

 Supporting the setup of the River Hiz Conservation group in partnership with the 
Ickleford PC. 

 

 Liaising with the Kimpton PC and the Bright Star Public House in Peters Green. 
Regarding the installation of a defibrillator to be sited in the red telephone box that 
is owned by the pub. An application for funding towards this project may be 
forthcoming at the next committee meeting. 

 
8.2.2 Update on Previous Grants Awarded   

 

 Holwell PC Noticeboard 
The Holwell Parish Council were awarded £744 towards the cost of a new notice 
board at the last meeting in March. The notice board has been purchased and is due 
to be installed on June 5th.  

Page 19



 

 Holwell Pavilion 
The Parish Council have been successful in applying for £50,000 from the 
Community Facility Capital Grant Fund. This will be used towards rebuilding the 
pavilion to enable wider community use, not only for sports but also for community 
meetings, family parties and health and wellbeing activities. 
 

 Elmtree Avenue Play area – update from David Sample clerk at Offley PC 
The play equipment has been ordered and the lead time was 12 weeks. 
The contractor is due on site sometime in June. 

 
8.3 Highways Matters 

 
8.3.1 This section is included within the community update report for each committee cycle to 

facilitate debate and enable appropriate feedback on any of the proposed or listed 
Highways related schemes.   

 
8.3.2 Any new proposals or revised schemes will be forwarded to the respective Herts County 

Councillor for  consideration who will in turn report back and advise the Committee 
accordingly. 

 
9. LEGAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1  Sections  9.8.1 (a) and 9.8.1 (b) of the Council’s Constitution in respect of the Area 

Committees’ Terms of Reference, notes the following:-  To allocate discretionary 
budgets within the terms determined by the Council and to allocate devolved budgets 
and activities within the terms determined by the Council. This is outlined in the current 
Grant Policy agreed by Cabinet in January 2020.   Section 9.8.2 (h) of the Constitution 
in respect of Area Committees’ Terms of Reference notes that they may:- Establish and 
maintain relationships with outside bodies/voluntary organisations operating specifically 
with the area including, where appropriate, the provision of discretionary grant 
aid/financial support etc. but excluding grants for district-wide activities. 

 
9.2 Chapter 1, s1-8 of the Localism Act 2011 provides a General Power of Competence 

which gives local authorities the powers to do anything provided that it is not specifically 
prohibited in legislation. 

 
9.3 Section 137 of the Local Government Act 1972 provides specific authority for the Council 

to incur expenditure on anything which is in the interests of and will bring direct benefit 
to its area.  This includes a charity or other body operating for public service. 

 
10. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
10.1 As outlined in Appendix A Committee budget 2021/22 
 
10.2 The carry over amount from 2020/21 was £165.00.  
 

The budget for 2021/22 is £8,700 therefore the total funds available to allocate this 
financial year is £8,865 

Page 20



  
10.3 The grant funding applications for this meeting total £2,000.  
            If all the grants considered at this meeting are agreed it will leave a it will leave £6,865 

for the remaining three meetings. 
 

11. RISK IMPLICATIONS 
 
11.1 There are no relevant risk entries that have been recorded on Pentana Risk, the 

Council’s performance and risk system. Individual events should have their own risk 
assessments in place to mitigate any health and safety issues. Whenever a request for 
grant funding for equipment is received, the recipient of the funding will be advised to 
obtain insurance for the item to avoid a repeat request for funding in the event of the 
equipment being stolen or damaged. There are no pertinent risk implications for the 
Authority associated with any items within this report. 

 
12. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
12.1. In line with the Public Sector Equality Duty, public bodies must, in the exercise of their 

functions, give due regard to the need to eliminate discrimination, harassment, 
victimisation, to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations between those 
who share a protected characteristic and those who do not. 
 

12.2. Area committee funding is awarded to community groups that clearly demonstrate 
positive impact on the community and wider environment. The projects outlined in this 
report seek to advance equality of opportunity and foster good relations. 

 
13. SOCIAL VALUE IMPLICATIONS 
 
13.1. The Social Value Act and “go local” requirements do not apply to this report. 
 
14. ENVIRONMENTAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
14.1  The decision to purchase of a mower ought to take into consideration the evident 

changes in the environment. Warmer and wetter winters and hotter and drier summers 
are being experienced in the UK and may affect the conditions in which any outdoor 
sports are played, now and in the future.  

 
15. HUMAN RESOURCE IMPLICATIONS 
 
15.1 There are no pertinent Human Resource implications associated with any items within 
 this report 
 
16. APPENDICES 
 
16.1 Appendix 1 – 2021/22 Financial Year Budget Sheet. 
 
 
 
 

Page 21



 
17. CONTACT OFFICERS 
 
17.1 Author:  Claire Morgan, Community Engagement Team Leader 

Email:  Claire.morgan@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4226 
 

Contributors: Reuben Ayavoo, Policy & Community Engagement Manager 
   Email: reuben.ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4212 
 

Anne Miller, Assistant Accountant   
  Email:  Anne.Miller@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4374 

 
  Yvette Roberts, Legal Officer 
  Email: Yvette.roberts@north-herts.gov.uk  ext. 4310 
  
  Laura Bignell, Acting Human Resources Operations Manager 

Email: Laura.Bignell@north-herts.gov.uk  ext. 4347 
 

   Tim Everitt, Performance & Risk Officer 
Email: tim.everitt@north-herts.gov.uk ext. 4646 

 
18. BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
18.1 Review of Policies and Procedures for Financial Assistance to Voluntary and Community 

Organisations, November 2002.  
 

18.2 Review of Grant Policy Cabinet January 2020 
 

Page 22

mailto:Claire.morgan@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:reuben.ayavoo@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Anne.Miller@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Yvette.roberts@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:Laura.Bignell@north-herts.gov.uk
mailto:tim.everitt@north-herts.gov.uk


SUMMARY/ TOTALS Funding Allocated Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Budget

CARRY FORWARD BUDGET 2020/21 £165 £0 £0 £0 £165

BASE BUDGET 2021/22 £8,700 £0 £0 £0 £8,700

TOTAL £8,865 £0 £0 £0 £8,865

2020/21 Funding Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Amount
Comments

CARRY FORWARD BUDGET 2020/21
£165 £0

£0

£165 £0 £0 £0 £165

2021/22 Funding Allocated Date Spent Outstanding
Unallocated 

Amount
Comments

BASE BUDGET 2021/22 £8,700 £0

£0

£0

£0

£0

£8,700 £0 £0 £0 £8,700

SOUTHERN RURAL AREA COMMITTEE BUDGET 2021/22

Project

Project

P
age 23



T
his page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 MINUTES - 4 MARCH 2021
	8 GRANTS & COMMUNITY UPDATE
	Appendix 1 – 2021/22 Financial Year Budget Sheet.


